
 1 

 

 
 

PROPOSED AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE COUNCIL 

November 18, 2019 - 7:00 P.M. 
Page Memorial Building 

Village Council Chambers 
839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, Michigan 48849 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
III. Roll Call 

 
IV. Approval of Agenda 

 
V. Citizen Comment on Agenda Items: 

Under the Open Meetings Act, any citizen may come forward at this time and make comment on 
items that appear on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to five minutes per person.  Anyone who 
would like to speak shall state his/her name and address for the record.  Remarks should be confined 
to the question at hand and addressed to the chair in a courteous tone.  No person shall have the right 
to speak more than once on any particular subject until all other persons wishing to be heard on that 
subject have had the opportunity to speak. 

 
VI. Minutes:  To approve regular meeting minutes for August 19, 2019 meeting minutes 

 
VII. Bills: 

a) Approve bills equal to or less than $3,000.00 each from 9/01/2019 to 9/30/2019 
b) Approve bills in excess of $3,000.00 each, including: 
  

1. Homeworks/ Tri-County Electric Cooperative – $4,429.92 – Water Plant Electricity 
(Paid)  

2. Gametime -- $13,200.00 – Poured in Place for Swing in Village Park  
3. M&M Outdoor Services – Tree Removals -- $5,950.00 (Paid) 
4. Pavement Maintenance Systems, LLC – Resurfacing of Jordan Lake Avenue, Bonanza, 

and Fourth Avenue -- $136,045.18 (Paid) 
5. PK Contracting – Pavement Markings -- $7,176.10 (Paid) 

 
VIII. Consent Agenda 

The following consent agenda will normally be adopted without discussion; however, at the request of 
any council member, any item may be removed from the consent agenda for discussion. 
 
Reports and Minutes:  To accept and file the following: 
 
a) Lake Odessa Arts Commission Board Meeting Minutes and Financials – October 2019 
b) Lake Odessa Arts Commission Meeting Schedule for 2020 



 2 

c) Village of Lake Odessa Downtown Development Authority Minutes and Financials – 
September 2019 

d) Village of Lake Odessa Downtown Development Authority Meeting Schedule for 2020 
e) Village of Lake Odessa 2020-2021 Budget Schedule 

 
IX. Departmental Reports: 

a) Village Manager’s Report 
b) Police Department 
c) Department of Public Works  
d) Finance Report  

X. Committee Reports 
a)   Personnel / Finance Committee 
b) Recreation / Special Projects Committee 

 
XI. Presentations 

a)  None 
 

XII. Discussion Items 
a)         None 
 

XIII. Public Hearing 
a) Public Hearing on Proposed Village Right-of-Way Vacation 
 

XIV. Unfinished Business  
i)       None 

 
XV. New Business: 

a) Introduction and First Reading of Proposed Articles of Incorporation for the Lakewood 
Recreational Authority 

b) Proposed Resolution 2019-37: Approving the Vacation of a Portion of Undeveloped Village-
Owned Right-of-Way Between Lots 35 and 36 on Jordan Lake Avenue, Between Clark Street 
and Bonanza Road in the Village of Lake Odessa 

c) Proposed Resolution 2019-38: Approving, Authorizing, and Directing the Village Manager to 
Sign a Grant Agreement between the Village of Lake Odessa and the Michigan Council for 
Arts and Cultural Affairs 

d) Proposed Resolution 2019-39: Approving the Purchase of Central Square Public Safety 
Software for the Village of Lake Odessa 

e) Proposed Resolution 2019-40: Approving the Auctioning of a 2010 Chevrolet Impala 
f) Proposed Resolution 2019-41: Approving the Village President’s Appointment List as 

Presented for Various Village Posts, Boards and Committees 
 
XVI. Miscellaneous Correspondence: 

 
a) Letter from Jim Valentine, Director of Ionia County Central Dispatch – RE: Support for Central Square 

Public Safety Software upgrade 
 

XVII. Trustee Comments 
 

XVIII. Public Comment 
 

XIX. Adjournment 



   

VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

October 21, 2019 (DRAFT) 
PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING 

 
Meeting called to order at 7:00 pm by President Banks. 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
Council present:   Karen Banks, Mike Brighton, Kay Hartzler, Charles Jaquays, Mel McCloud, Brandy Walkington, 
Mike Rudisill 
Absent: None 
Staff present: Patrick Reagan, Pearl Goodemoot, Kendra Backing, Olivia Boot 
Visitors present:  Daryl Hartzler, Melissa Mason, Paul Mason, Annete Denklie, R. Olm, Jessica Courtright 
 
Motion by McCloud, support by Jaquays to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment.   
 
MINUTES 
Motion by McCloud, support by Walkington to approve minutes of September 16, 2019.  Motion carried. 
 
BILLS 
Motion by Jaquays, support by Hartzler to approve expenditures equal to or less than $3,000.00 for the period 
9/1/2019 thru 9/30/2019.  Motion carried.  
 
Motion by McCloud, support by Hartzler to approve payment of invoices in excess of $3,000.00 items as follows:  

a) Homeworks/ Tri-County Electric Cooperative – $5,337.34 – Water Plant Electricity (Paid) 
b) Hager Consulting – $3,032.89 – CDBG Administrative Consulting (Paid) 
c) Pavement Maintenance Systems, LLC -- $136,045.18 – Microresurfacing Project on Jordan Lake 

Avenue, Fourth Street, and Bonanza Road (Paid) 
d) Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr, and Huber, Inc. -- $18,957.37 – 2017 MEDC ICE Prject Engineering 

(Paid) 
Motion carried.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion by Walkington, support by Brighton to approve the consent agenda, as follows:  

a) Lake Odessa Arts Commission Board Meeting Minutes and Financials – September 2019 
b) Zoning Administrator Report – September 2019 
c) Lake Odessa Community Library Board Meeting Minutes – August 2019 

Motion carried.  
 
DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
Manager’s Report:  Reagan discussed New Business Items with council, reminded everyone of the overnight 
parking restriction that goes into effect November 1.   Reagan stated council and staff pictures will be taken on 
Friday and that the Village Trick-or-Treat hours are October 31 from 6:00pm to 8:00pm.  Reagan informed council 
that he was working with Odessa Township Supervisor Dave Bulling and Franklin Metals regarding a noise 
complaint received by Odessa Township.    
 
Brighton inquired about brush pick-up.   



VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
OCTOBER 21, 2019 COUNCIL MINUTES, PAGE 2 

 
Reagan explained that Jesse Trout, DPW Superintendent had a prior commitment and was not in attendance and 
Chief Backing was responding to an accident and also was not in attendance.   
 
Banks inquired about budget planning.  Goodemoot will distribute budget memos.   
 
Police Report:  There was nothing additional to report. 
DPW Report:  There was nothing additional to report.  
Finance: Goodemoot had nothing additional to report.       
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
Personnel/Finance Committee:  There was no update.     
Recreation/Special Projects Committee:  There was no update.    
 
PRESENTATIONS 
There were no presentations.    
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
There were no discussion items.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Motion by Walkington, support by Brighton to adopt Proposed Resolution 2019-36: Setting a Public Hearing for the 
Proposed Vacation of a Village-Owned Right-of-Way for Monday, November 18, 2019 at 7:00pm.  Motion carried 
with the following roll call vote:  Yes:  Hartzler, Brighton, Walkington, Banks; No: McCloud, Jaqauys, Rudisill.   
 
Motion by Brighton, support by Walkington to approve Ordinance 2019-05: An Ordinance to Amend Village 
Ordinance Number 129, the Granting of a Franchise Agreement for Gas and Electric Service to Consumers Energy.  
Motion carried with the following roll call vote:  Yes:  McCloud, Jaquays, Hartzler, Brighton, Rudisill, Walkington, 
Banks; No: None.   
 
MISCELLANEOUS CORRESPONDENCE 
There was no miscellaneous correspondence.  
 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
McCloud asked everyone to have a safe Halloween.  
 
Jaquays had no comment. 
 
Hartzler stated the village is looking nice with the streets done and banners up. 
 
Brighton had no comment. 
 
Rudisill had no comment.  
 
Walkington had no comment.  
 
Banks had no comment.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Paul Mason discussed the noise ordinance and the decibel level of his garage music in comparison to the village’s 
downtown music.  Mason was concerned about noise ordinance enforcement.  President Banks explained that 



VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
OCTOBER 21, 2019 COUNCIL MINUTES, PAGE 3 

Mason resided in Odessa Township and not within Village limits.  Reagan invited Mason to discuss the noise 
ordinance at his office.   
 
Chief Backing arrived with Olivia Boot at 7:19pm.   
 
Chief Backing introduced full-time officer, Olivia Boot.  Boot informed council of her law enforcement experience.  
 
Motion by Brighton, support by Walkington to adjourn the meeting.  Motion carried.  Meeting adjourned at 7:22pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Pearl Goodemoot 
Village Clerk / Treasurer 













1 
 

Minutes 

Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission 
Regular Meeting  

Monday, 10/07/2019 -  6:30 p.m. 
Page Memorial Building 
Lake Odessa, Michigan 

 
 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call 
Meeting called to order by Vice Chair Stafford at 7:02 p.m. 
Present: Banks, Hermes, Wortley, Stafford, Rodriguez 
Absent: Mattson, Farrell and Hickey 
 

2. Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Banks, support by Wortley to approve agenda.  All ayes; motion carried. 
 

3. Public Comment on Agenda Items 
None 
 

4. Minutes  
Motion by Hermes, support by Wortley to approve 9/10/19 minutes.  All ayes; motion carried. 

 
5. Finance 

a) Accounts payable – Motion by Banks, supported by Stafford to approve accounts payable of $90.32 
to the Hastings Banner.  All ayes; motion carried. 
 

b) Financial Report -No financial report 
 

6. Discussion Items 
a) Art in the Park 

1) Artist Applications – Rodriguez reported that there have been no new applications. 
 

2) 2020 grant application – Banks reported that the award announcement for 2020 Grant 
application will be on 10/18/19, and stated that the final report for the 2019 grant will be 
turned in by the Oct. 31 deadline. 

3) Job Descriptions/List of Tasks:  Discussed list of tasks and changes to be made to job 
descriptions. 
• Rodriguez to review duty list of Secretary/Treasurer. 
• Banks to add bullet point to each chair to coordinate with marketing. 
• Consensus was that Volunteers should be a separate committee chair. 
• Bullet points "Seek out & post notices on art & craft fair websites" and "Seek opportunity 

for recruiting," currently under the Artists job description, should instead become part of 
the Marketing chair's responsibilities. 

• Discussed alleviating some of the duties that Banks handles; email, updating records binder 
to include job descriptions and tasks, include copies of all e-mails, written correspondence, 

Approved 11/4/2019 



2 
 

add a timeline and a flash drive or CD containing copies of all documents to provide 
reference for everyone. 

 
7. Future Meeting Dates 

a) Next meeting – November 4, 2019 at 7:00 p.m.  2020 meeting calendar will be on November 
2019 meeting agenda.  There will be no December 2019 meeting. 

 
8. Board Member Comments:  None. 

 
9. Adjournment:  Without objection, meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

 
Respectfully Submitted 
Judy Rodriguez/Secretary-Treasurer 
 
 



COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/1Page:11/04/2019 02:24 PM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village
                                     Fund 290 ARTS

PERIOD ENDED
10/31/2019

PERIOD ENDED
10/31/2018DescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

15,429.39 11,605.48 CASH-LAKE O AREA ART'S COMMISSION290-000-001.016

15,429.39 11,605.48 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

(0.24)0.00 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE290-000-202.000
0.00 1,059.94 DUE TO OTHER FUNDS290-000-214.000
0.00 32.90 DUE TO MICHIGAN - SALES TAX290-000-228.023

(0.24)1,092.84 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

4,574.22 (3,503.18)OPENING BALANCE EQUITY290-000-390.009
11,267.82 11,267.82 RETAINED EARNINGS290-000-390.010

15,842.04 7,764.64 Total Fund Balance

15,842.04 7,764.64 Beginning Fund Balance

(412.41)2,748.00 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
15,429.63 10,512.64 Ending Fund Balance
15,429.39 11,605.48 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 1/1Page: 11/04/2019 02:24 PM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 10/01/2019 - 10/31/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

Bank ARTS 

0.00 VERIZON WIRELESS20(S)ARTS10/21/2019
90.32 HASTINGS BANNER3093ARTS10/21/2019

V49.89 VERIZON WIRELESS3094ARTS10/21/2019

ARTS TOTALS:

90.32 Total of 2 Disbursements:

49.89 Less 1 Void Checks:
140.21 Total of 3 Checks:



BANK RECONCILIATION FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/1Page
:

11/04/2019 01:03 PM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

Bank ARTS FROM 10/01/2019 TO 10/31/2019
Reconciliation Record ID: 1127

40.00 Add: Journal Entries/Other
(90.32)Less: Cash Disbursements

15,479.71 Beginning GL Balance:

15,429.39 Ending GL Balance:

15,599.39 Ending Bank Balance:

0.00 Add: Deposits in Transit
Less:  Outstanding Checks

Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date

AP Checks

20.00 JENNIFER SECONSKY & TRUDY SANOCKI3037   09/05/2018
50.00 ALAN SHAFER3074   08/06/2019

100.00 LANA THOMPSON3075   08/06/2019

170.00 Total - 3 Outstanding Checks:
15,429.39 Adjusted Bank Balance

0.00 Unreconciled Difference:

DATE:REVIEWED BY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/2Page:11/04/2019 02:23 PM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 290 - ARTS
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

145.67 (685.00)1,500.00 1,500.00 2,185.00 1,685.00 ART IN THE PARK REVENUE-NEXT FY290-000-401.001
128.44 (640.00)2,250.00 2,250.00 2,890.00 4,090.00 ART IN THE PARK REVENUE290-000-401.290

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FEDERAL GRANTS290-000-501.000
63.01 822.00 2,222.00 2,222.00 1,400.00 14,914.00 STATE GRANTS290-000-539.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL INCOME290-000-601.000

157.14 (200.00)350.00 350.00 550.00 350.00 FOOD BOOTH FEES290-000-610.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CONCESSIONS290-000-611.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST290-000-665.000

101.03 (31.00)3,000.00 3,000.00 3,031.00 3,000.00 DONATIONS-PRIVATE SOURCES290-000-675.000
0.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 0.00 30.00 MISC REVENUE290-000-695.000

106.17 (584.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,056.00 24,069.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

106.17 (584.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,056.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 752 - ARTS

100.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 OPER EXPENSE-GRANT DISBURSEMENT290-752-701.000
95.83 2.50 60.00 60.00 57.50 60.00 REFUND/REIMBURSEMENTS290-752-724.000
21.05 315.82 400.00 400.00 84.18 439.45 SUPPLIES290-752-728.000
45.15 54.85 100.00 100.00 45.15 90.29 POSTAGE290-752-740.000
197.95 (97.95)100.00 100.00 197.95 98.95 OPERATING EXPENSE290-752-793.000
73.80 131.00 500.00 500.00 369.00 540.00 T-SHIRTS290-752-794.000
100.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 SOUND290-752-795.000

0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 ROLLS290-752-796.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CONTINGENCIES290-752-797.000

332.61 (232.61)100.00 100.00 332.61 261.15 CONCESSIONS SUPPLIES290-752-798.000
100.00 (147.15)0.00 0.00 147.15 0.00 CREDIT CARD FEES290-752-804.000
133.33 (25.00)75.00 75.00 100.00 75.00 RADIOS290-752-851.000
100.00 (139.99)0.00 0.00 139.99 67.47 TELEPHONE290-752-852.000
184.07 (2,132.90)2,537.00 2,537.00 4,669.90 8,528.95 ADVERTISING290-752-881.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CLEAN UP290-752-890.001
75.99 72.02 300.00 300.00 227.98 223.45 KIDS AREA290-752-895.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FOOD COUPONS290-752-897.000

87.06 110.00 850.00 850.00 740.00 850.00 ENTERTAINMENT290-752-898.000
126.00 (52.00)200.00 200.00 252.00 380.00 PORT A POTTY290-752-953.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DUMPSTER290-752-954.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 57.10 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE290-752-963.000

100.00 (494.25)0.00 0.00 494.25 0.00 PARK IMPROVEMENTS290-752-964.000
42.43 1,439.25 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,060.75 2,769.79 PROJECT COSTS290-752-967.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS OUT290-752-999.000

110.52 (996.41)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,468.41 15,991.60 Total Dept 752 - ARTS

110.52 (996.41)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,468.41 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 412.41 0.00 0.00 (412.41)8,077.40 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

110.52 (996.41)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,468.41 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
106.17 (584.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,056.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 290 - ARTS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 2/2Page:11/04/2019 02:23 PM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER



LAKE ODESSA AREA ARTS COMMISSION 
 

2020 MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

DAY DATE TIME LOCATION 

Monday January 13* 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday February 10 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday March 9 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday April 13 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday May 11 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday June 8 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday July 13 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday July 27** 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday August 10 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday September 14 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday October 12 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday November 9 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

Monday December 14 7:00 p.m. Page Building 

 



1 
 

VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
MINUTES 

Regular Meeting - Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
Page Memorial Building, Lake Odessa MI 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Karen Banks, Sue Dahms, Daryl Hartzler, Sarah McGarry, Bill Rogers 
 
ABSENT:  Sandy Guthrie, Darwin Thompson 
 
STAFF:   Village Manager Patrick Reagan 
 
VISITORS:  None 
 
I. Call to Order:   Meeting called to order by Chair McGarry at 7:02 a.m. 

 
II. Agenda:  Motion by Dahms, support by McGarry, to approve agenda as presented.  All ayes; 

motion carried. 
 

III. Public Comment:  None 
 

IV. Minutes:    Motion by Dahms, support by Rogers, to approve minutes of 7/9/2019 regular 
meeting.  All ayes; motion carried. 

 
V. Finance:  Dahms reported only one expenditure, that being $25 in July for Chamber 

membership dues, and a current account balance of $21,784.33.  Tax increment revenue will be 
received in November.   

 
Banks reported that the $100 approved at the July meeting for the Car Show was not paid, as 
the DDA is not permitted to make donations.   

 
VI. Discussion/Action Items: 

 
a) Christmas in the Village:  Motion by Banks, support by Hartzler to approve an amount not to 

exceed $150 to cover advertising costs, pending more information from the Chamber.  All 
ayes; motion carried. 
 

b) Christmas Decorations:  Reagan reported new holidays lights for the streetscape trees have 
been ordered.  Banks stated that Sid's Flower Shop has submitted their proposal for the 
2019 garlands.  Hartzler inquired if other local florists provide the same service.  Banks 
stated that inquiries have been made in the past to Duwayne's Greenhouse and Lake Odessa 
Floral, but neither business have expressed interest.  Motion by Banks, support by McGarry 
to approve an amount not to exceed $1,500 for the purchase of holiday lamppost garland 
for the downtown from Sid's Flower Shop. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the holiday lamppost sponsorship program.  Consensus was 
to continue the program in the same manner as in the past. 

 

Approved 
11/12/19 



2 
 

c) Parking Lot Fencing:  Reagan discussed a $3,000 proposal from GEI Engineering to do design 
engineering work for decorative fencing between sidewalk and downtown village parking 
lot, and suggested that the village DPW could do the brick masonry work and installation of 
powder coated fence sections without the need for engineering services.  Dahms expressed 
a desire to see a sketch before decisions are made.  Motion by Dahms, support by McGarry 
to decline proposal from GEI and invite a landscape architect to come to the November 
meeting.  All ayes; motion carried. 
 

d) Downtown Watering Program:  Banks reported she had received information from a 
company that manufactures self-watering planters, which could possibly reduce the time 
spent on watering tasks to once every 2-3 weeks.  Reagan shared his positive experience 
with the self-watering hanging baskets used in Portland, and stated if the DDA chooses to 
purchase self-watering containers for the municipal planters, the village's DPW crew could 
take on the task of maintaining the municipal planters. 
 
The company's brochure was reviewed and discussion followed.  Board members expressed 
concerns about how business owners' flowers will be maintained if the current volunteer 
program and use of village equipment by volunteers ceases.  Consensus was to give the 
matter more thought and continue the discussion at the November meeting. 

 
VII. Beautification Committee Report:  Banks reported that the fall banners have arrived and will be 

installed soon.  Summer flowers will be replaced with fall mums in the next week or so, with 
work to be done by Banks and Rogers and/or the DPW. 

 
VIII. Misc. Correspondence:   None 

 
IX. Board Member Comments:  Reagan commended the Arts Commission for a job well done on a 

very successful Art in the Park.  Banks thanked DDA board members who volunteered for the 
event, and stated feedback received from vendors was overwhelmingly positive.  She stated 
applications submitted for next year's Art in the Park have already exceeded the halfway mark 
of the number of exhibitors in 2019. 

 
X. Adjournment:  Without objection, meeting adjourned at 8:01 a.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Karen Banks, Recording Secretary 



COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/1Page:11/04/2019 11:53 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village
                                     Fund 248 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

PERIOD ENDED
10/31/2019

PERIOD ENDED
10/31/2018DescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

19,018.54 5,372.91 CASH-DDA CHECKING 248-000-001.024

19,018.54 5,372.91 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

0.00 0.00 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE248-000-202.000

0.00 0.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

22,009.43 0.00 FUND BALANCE248-000-390.000
5,706.49 5,706.49 OPENING BALANCE EQUITY248-000-390.009

27,715.92 5,706.49 Total Fund Balance

27,715.92 0.00 Beginning Fund Balance

(8,697.38)(333.58)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
19,018.54 (333.58)Ending Fund Balance
19,018.54 5,372.91 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 1/1Page: 11/04/2019 11:56 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 10/01/2019 - 10/31/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

Bank DDA 6015 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

504.00 DUWAYNE'S MARKETPLACE1435DDA10/07/2019
794.65 WINTERGREEN CORPORATION1436DDA10/28/2019

DDA TOTALS:

1,298.65 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
1,298.65 Total of 2 Checks:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/1Page:11/04/2019 11:52 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 28,902.36 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES248-000-402.000
156.64 (14.16)25.00 25.00 39.16 30.86 INTEREST248-000-665.000

0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,890.00 DONATIONS-PRIVATE SOURCES248-000-675.000

0.12 31,485.84 31,525.00 31,525.00 39.16 30,823.22 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

0.12 31,485.84 31,525.00 31,525.00 39.16 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 275 - DDA

0.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES248-275-727.000
0.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 POSTAGE248-275-740.000
0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES248-275-801.000

100.00 0.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS248-275-815.000
3.81 961.87 1,000.00 1,000.00 38.13 0.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING248-275-816.000

54.26 365.94 800.00 800.00 434.06 442.79 ADVERTISING248-275-881.000
29.92 14,015.30 20,000.00 20,000.00 5,984.70 7,032.18 BEAUTIFICATION 248-275-967.000
150.31 (754.65)1,500.00 1,500.00 2,254.65 1,313.82 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS248-275-967.002

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 Total Dept 275 - DDA

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

322.13 11,397.38 2,700.00 2,700.00 (8,697.38)22,009.43 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.12 31,485.84 31,525.00 31,525.00 39.16 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/1Page:11/04/2019 11:58 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 28,902.36 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES248-000-402.000
156.64 (14.16)25.00 25.00 39.16 30.86 INTEREST248-000-665.000

0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,890.00 DONATIONS-PRIVATE SOURCES248-000-675.000

0.12 31,485.84 31,525.00 31,525.00 39.16 30,823.22 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

0.12 31,485.84 31,525.00 31,525.00 39.16 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 275 - DDA

0.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES248-275-727.000
0.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 POSTAGE248-275-740.000
0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES248-275-801.000

100.00 0.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS248-275-815.000
3.81 961.87 1,000.00 1,000.00 38.13 0.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING248-275-816.000

54.26 365.94 800.00 800.00 434.06 442.79 ADVERTISING248-275-881.000
29.92 14,015.30 20,000.00 20,000.00 5,984.70 7,032.18 BEAUTIFICATION 248-275-967.000
150.31 (754.65)1,500.00 1,500.00 2,254.65 1,313.82 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS248-275-967.002

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 Total Dept 275 - DDA

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

322.13 11,397.38 2,700.00 2,700.00 (8,697.38)22,009.43 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.12 31,485.84 31,525.00 31,525.00 39.16 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:



Village of Lake Odessa 
Downtown Development Authority 

Proposed Meeting Schedule for 2020 
 

The following  Downtown Development Authority meetings are scheduled to be 
held at the Page Memorial Building, 839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, Michigan 
48849 at 7:00 am.  

 
January 14, 2020 

 
March 10, 2020 

 
May 12, 2020 

 
July 14, 2020 

 
September 8, 2020 

 
November 10, 2020 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  VILLAGE COUNCIL 
FROM:   PEARL GOODEMOOT 
SUBJECT: BUDGET SCHEDULE FOR 2020/2021 FISCAL YEAR 
DATE:  NOVEMBER 15, 2019  
 

 

The Village staff has put together the following is the budget planning schedule for the 
upcoming fiscal year: 

DAY DATE STEP IN BUDGET PROCESS 

Wednesday 12-18-19 Staff and council members submit budget requests to 
Clerk/Treasurer 

Monday 1-6-20 Council receives preliminary draft budget and spreadsheet 
showing budget request 

Monday 1-13-20 Council members submit written questions to Clerk/Treasurer 

Friday 1-31-20 Council receives final budget document 

Monday 2-10-20 Council budget workshop @ 6:30pm 

Monday 2-17-20 Public hearing and budget adoption 

 
Enclosed with this memo is a Budget Request Form which is to be used for requesting items in 
next year’s budget.  A separate form should be used for each request, so feel free to make 
additional copies if necessary.  All budget requests are due December 18. 



1  

REPORT TO THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA COUNCIL 
 
DATE November 18, 2019 
TO: President Karen Banks; Vice-President Mel McCloud; Trustee 
Brighton; Trustee Rudisill; Trustee Jaquays; Trustee Walkington; Trustee 
Hartzler 
 
FROM: Patrick Reagan, Village Manager  
 
RE: Manager's Report to Village Council 
 
President Banks and Village Council Members, 
 
Please find below my report on the Council agenda before you tonight. 
 
New Business 
 
Introduction and First Reading of Proposed Articles of Incorporation for the 
Lakewood Recreational Authority 
 
The Village and Odessa Township have been working together on this issue for 
quite some time. Basically, this Authority is proposed for the construction and 
future maintenance of the proposed Jordan Lake Trail.  
 
As this proposed trail utilizes MDOT funding, for which the Village is the sole 
responsible recipient of the grant funding, it is important that these funds are 
administered to by a body that is made up of representatives of the Village of Lake 
Odessa. An authority will assure the taxpayers and residents of the Village that 
funds that we are responsible for are being spent wisely, appropriately, and 
knowledgeably by the Village of Lake Odessa. Basically, an Authority will provide 
the necessary and direct oversight to this project throughout the entire process. 
 
Furthermore, this Authority will allow for future planning and funding for the 
necessary future maintenance of this trail. With multiple municipalities working 
towards this common goal, an Authority is a well-recognized and appropriate body 
to over see this project, which will initially cost over $1 million to construct and 
thousands of dollars in maintenance in the coming years.  
 



2  

As this is an introduction and first reading only, no action is necessary by the 
Village Council. 
 
Proposed Resolution 2019-37: Vacation of a Portion of a Village Owned 
Right-of-Way 
 
As you will recall from last month’s Council meeting, Joseph Morton, of 1744 
Jordan Lake Avenue, submitted a request for the Village to vacate an undeveloped 
right-of-way that it has which is located between 1744 and 1738 Jordan lake 
Avenue. Trustees Brighton and Walkington were named to an ad-hoc committee to 
review this request. I met with Trustees Brighton and Walkington soon after the 
meeting and we discussed the reasons for and against abandoning this undeveloped 
right-of-way. It was the consensus of this committee that this area, which has been 
a source of frustration for years between the neighboring parties, and also 
involving the Village, with little ever having been done to resolve the overall issue. 
The committee proposes the following with regard to its findings: 
 
1. The right-of-way should be vacated, with 50% of the area being given to the 
property owner at 1744 Jordan Lake Avenue and the remaining 50% given to the 
property owner at 1738 Jordan Lake Avenue. Please find a map attached to this 
resolution showing the area proposed for vacation. 
 
2. A utility easement should be kept on this area, in perpetuity, for any future use 
or need that might arise from either the Village or the Lakewood Wastewater 
Authority. 
 
3. This easement shall also state that while no structure (either principle or 
accessory) is allowed to be built on the area of the easement, an exception will be 
made for a fence. A fence permit would still be required prior to any installation. 
 
4. If a fence is built on this area where the utility easement exists, and a need to 
utilize this easement is found by either the Village of Lake Odessa or the 
Lakewood Wastewater Authority, this fence will be taken down and no 
reimbursement or compensation will be given for the value of the fence, either 
historically or at its future value.   
 
I spoke with Doug Suntkin, who informed me that this right-of-way was kept for 
access to a force main that runs north and south behind this property. However, he 
informed me that is rarely, if ever, used and that this force main could be accessed 
just as easily from the right-of-way located off of Clark Street. 



3  

 
While I understand that there have historically been questions of whether this 
action sets a precedent or not, I do not believe that it does. This is a specific portion 
of a Village right-of-way, one that does not have any utilities running through or 
below it. Many of the other rights-of-way that are held by the Village do have 
utilities running below them, usually sewer main, which would need immediate 
access should a disruption to sewer service be found. However, there are no 
utilities to be found in the portion of right-of-way being presented and considered 
for vacation. This makes this area unique and therefore, in my opinion, outside of 
precedent setting. 
 
I also spoke with Dave Kline, of Kline Assessing, the Assessor for the township. 
He informed me that while there would be a small increase in taxes on each 
property – as they will be gaining more land – the amount would be very small and 
would not have a devastating impact on either property owner. 
 
Proposed Resolution 2019-38: Approving, Authorizing, and Directing the 
Village Manager to Sign a Grant Agreement between the Village of Lake 
Odessa and the Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs 
 
The Arts Commission has sought, and has been granted, a grant to help support the 
annual “Art in the Park” event for 2020. As last year was my first “Art in the Park” 
event, I was absolutely amazed by the attendance, the vendors, and the overall 
community pride that this event brought to Lake Odessa. This resolution approves, 
authorizes, and directs the Village Manager to sign and accept this grant on behalf 
of the Village. I strongly and wholeheartedly recommend that this resolution be 
passed and I look forward to this event again in 2020. 
 
Proposed Resolution 2019-39: Approving the Purchase of Central Square 
Public Safety Software for the Village of Lake Odessa 
 
The Village’s Police Department currently utilizes an outdated and cumbersome 
software program for the writing and sharing of reports across multiple agencies. 
Both Central Dispatch and the Sheriff’s Department will be moving to Central 
Square Public Safety Software – by the Village moving to it as well, two benefits 
will be found: 1. As our systems align, this will allow the Village to share 
information with the Sheriff’s Department and Central Dispatch in a manner that 
will continue to be efficient. As we depend on Central Dispatch and as we work 
closely with the Ionia County Sheriff’s Department, this will allow us to essentially 
continue to “speak the same language.” 2. As both the Sheriff’s Department and 



4  

Central Dispatch will be switching to this software, the purchase price is reduced 
for the Village of Lake Odessa. Basically, we will be “piggybacking” off of these 
two entities purchase. Please find that I have included a memo from Jim Valentine, 
the Direct of Ionia County Central Dispatch, in support of this purchase. 
 
Proposed Resolution 2019-40: Approving the Auctioning of a 2010 Chevrolet 
Impala 
 
This vehicle is considered to be in “poor” condition, per the Village’s equipment 
replacement schedule. Furthermore, it has suffered from multiple issues in the past 
year and is no longer considered to be reliable enough – in its current state – to be 
used on a daily basis. I have spoken with M&W Inc, who have successfully 
auctioned off equipment for the Village in past years, and they have agreed to 
auction this outdated vehicle for us, with a minimum bid price of $2,500. M&W 
will take a portion of the sale price as an administrative fee. 
 
Proposed Resolution 2019-41: Approving the Village President’s Appointment 
List as Presented for Various Village Posts, Boards and Committees 
 
Please find an appointment list attached to the resolution. 
 
Items of Note 
 

◼ Please remember that overnight parking restrictions begin on 
November 1, 2019 and end on April 1, 2019. No parking is allowed on 
Village Streets between 2:00 am and 6:00 am between these dates. 

◼ I encourage you to read the reports from my staff as they have excellent 
information contained within them.  

◼ The DDA is running their “Garland Sponsorship Program” for 
downtown streetlights. Please find at your seat a copy of the letter and 
sponsorship form. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Patrick Reagan, Village Manager  
Village of Lake Odessa 



 

 

The Lake Odessa Police Department responded to 71 Calls for Service for the month of October 2019; 20 

Traffic Stops were conducted; 18 Warnings Issued,  5 Citations Issued, 1 Arrest(s) were made,  1 

Misdemeanor Traffic Citation(s) Issued, 0 Parking Citations, 0 Use of Force Incidents, 0 Taser 

Deployments,  2 Reserve Hours,  82360 Miles 2012 Impala,  45059 Miles 2016 Tahoe.  

1) Runaway 

2) Vehicle Lockout 

3) Suspicious Person 

4) Welfare Check 

5) Vehicle Lock Out 

6) Suspicious Person 

7) Suspicious Situation 

8) Lock Out 

9) Runaway  

10) Civil 

11) Assist Other Agency 

12) Ordinance Violation 

13) General Assist 

14) Harassment 

15) Child Abuse 

16) Vehicle Lock Out 



17) Fraud 

18) Suspicious Person 

19) Found Property 

20) Misdemeanor Traffic Offense 

21) Assist Traffic Hazard 

22) Civil 

23) Fraud 

24) BOL Hit and Run 

25) Suicidal Person 

26) Threats 

27) Larceny of fuel 

28) Child Custody 

29) Welfare Check 

30) Civil Dispute 

31) Stalking  

32) Suspicious Situation 

33) Found Property 

34) VIN Inspection 

35) Traffic Crash 

36) Runaway 

37) Civil 

38) Domestic 

39) Lock Out 

40) Found Property 

41) Runaway 

42) Civil  

43) Lock Out 

44) Larceny From Auto 

45) Lock Out 

46) Larceny From Auto 

47) Civil Dispute 

48) Suspicious Situation 

49) Found Property 

50) Larceny From Auto 

51) Medical Assist 

52) Assist Outside Agency 

53) Obstructing Justice 

54) Assist Outside Agency 

55) Larceny From Automobile 

56) Larceny From Automobile 

57) Assist Citizen 

58) Found Property 

59) Runaway 

60) Dog at Large 



61) Hit and Run Property Damage Accident 

62) Assist to Department of Human Services 

63) Domestic Violence/Unlawful entry 

64) Assist other agency 

65) Runaway 

66) Subpoena Service  

67) Welfare Check  

68) Property Damage Accident 

69) Abandon 911  

70) Property Damage Accident/OWI 

71) Animal Welfare 

Public Relations: 

A public open house was held at the Ionia County Central Dispatch Center and we were asked to attend 

the event for an opportunity to interact with the general public about public safety matters. See 

attached letter of appreciation from Director James Valentine. 

We had a safe candy check station set up in the lobby area of the Page building for Trick or Treaters. The 

weather was certainly a factor this year and the community seemed appreciative to be able to come 

into the building from the elements.  

 



 

 

Officer Boot and Officer Tollefson at the elementary school for the Halloween parade.  

 

 

 

 



 

Training:  

Officer Rader successfully completed Taser Instructor Training which included a combination of 

instructon, discussion and practical applications. Officer Rader  will be responsible for certifying officers  

and the various considerations associated with carrying a Taser such as deployment, use of force, tactics 

before and after deployment, non-effective deployment countermeasures, weapon retention, and force 

reporting issues. 

Officer Rader succesffuly completed Emergency Driving School which covered multiple driving scenerios, 

liability issues, pursuit case studies, vehicle dynamics, threshold/braking techniques, and driver 

limitations.  

 

Officer Bryan Rader 39-5  

 

 

 

 

 



 

Staff: 

 

 
Officer Olivia Boot 39-4 

Officer Boot was sworn in at the beginning of October. Officer Boot holds an Associates degree 
in Criminal Justice from Grand Rapids Community College and is currently working towards her 
Bachelor’s degree in Information Security from Ferris State University. Officer Boot worked 
part time for both Kent County Sheriffs Department and Sparta Police Department prior to 
joining our team. We are excited Officer Boot chose to continue her career with the Lake Odessa 
Police Department.  
 

 

 

 

 



 

Thank you to The Ionia County Sheriff’s Department who allowed us to borrow their speed 
display sign which was posted on Washington Blvd. We were advised we could borrow it in the 
future for any time of need. This initiative was well received by the public.  

 
 

Thank you for allowing our department to serve and protect this great community.  

 

 





Department of Public Works 

 October 18th 2019 to November 13th 2019 

Council Report 

Parks & Beach 

With help from the Consumers Energy Tree Grant, we planted 10 new trees in the park. The park restrooms have 

been closed and winterized for the season. Fortunately, we were able to remove and mulch the majority of the 

leaves before the snow came. I plan to replace the remainder of the dated farm fixture style lighting throughout 

the park with a much more energy efficient lighting soon.  

Streets 

Again, with help from the Consumers Energy Tree Grant, we were able to plant 10 trees in the street right of ways. 

These new trees were planted in areas that have lost large trees in the past. Several diseased and storm damaged 

trees were deemed hazardous by the Tree Board and unfortunately had to be removed over the past few weeks. I 

am keeping my fingers crossed for a decent week in December so we can rent the equipment and grind the many 

tree stumps we have scattered throughout the community. With the very wet fall, we have already seen a few 

potholes form. We have repaired those and continue to make repairs as needed. 

Water 

The effluent master meter on water treatment plant #2 stopped working recently. Without a working meter, the 

controls believe the filter is not producing water and in turn, shuts the pumps off. I have ordered a meter and will 

have the filter operational very soon. 

DPW 

The year-end scheduled brush collection was completed and bags are still being picked up weekly. As much as I 

disliked doing it, we prepared the snow and ice removal equipment. We plowed the first snow on November 9th in 

2018 and weren’t far behind that date in 2019! Plowing snow was difficult this time as there are so many leaves 

recently raked curbside. It seems like we drop our leaf rakes before we’re done and are forced to pick up snow 

shovels these days! We have spent a bulk of our time this month collecting leaves and will continue as much as 

possible. The majority of the summer maintenance equipment has been serviced, stored away and ready for next 

year. 

Purchase Recommendation  

None at this time. 

Additional Comments 



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 1/3Page: 11/11/2019 09:09 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 10/01/2019 - 10/31/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

Bank ARTS 

0.00 VERIZON WIRELESS20(S)ARTS10/21/2019
90.32 HASTINGS BANNER3093ARTS10/21/2019

V49.89 VERIZON WIRELESS3094ARTS10/21/2019

ARTS TOTALS:

90.32 Total of 2 Disbursements:

49.89 Less 1 Void Checks:
140.21 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank CAR 6523 CAR SHOW

194.25 VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA - GENERAL1129CAR10/23/2019

CAR TOTALS:

194.25 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
194.25 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank DDA 6015 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

504.00 DUWAYNE'S MARKETPLACE1435DDA10/07/2019
794.65 WINTERGREEN CORPORATION1436DDA10/28/2019

DDA TOTALS:

1,298.65 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
1,298.65 Total of 2 Checks:

Bank GEN 1447 GENERAL FUND

1,624.60 VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA40680GEN10/01/2019
30.00 IONIA LOCK & KEY40681GEN10/01/2019
86.20 LAKEWOOD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY40682GEN10/01/2019

644.15 NAPA OF IONIA40683GEN10/01/2019
463.98 QUILL CORPORATION40684GEN10/01/2019
22.25 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER40685GEN10/01/2019

8,015.00 WALKER, FLUKE & SHELDON, PLC40686GEN10/01/2019
59.91 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40687GEN10/07/2019
22.99 CARL'S SUPERMARKET40688GEN10/07/2019

2,311.76 CONSUMERS ENERGY40689GEN10/07/2019
120.00 LES'S SANITARY SERVICE40690GEN10/07/2019
900.00 MUNICODE40691GEN10/07/2019
106.68 PRINTING ESSENTIALS40692GEN10/07/2019
319.00 SMITH WELDING & REPAIR40693GEN10/07/2019
147.18 VERIZON WIRELESS40694GEN10/07/2019
494.65 WEX BANK40695GEN10/07/2019

9.85 BOB GREEN TRUCKING INC40696GEN10/07/2019
29.99 CARL'S SUPERMARKET40697GEN10/07/2019

390.50 CMP DISTRIBUTORS, INC40698GEN10/10/2019
91.00 HSV REDI-MIX40699GEN10/10/2019

232.25 IONIA COUNTY TREASURER40700GEN10/10/2019
553.50 NYE UNIFORM40701GEN10/10/2019
22.65 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER40702GEN10/10/2019
47.24 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40703GEN10/17/2019

2,587.00 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN40704GEN10/17/2019
233.62 CONSUMERS ENERGY40705GEN10/17/2019

2,497.00 DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC40706GEN10/17/2019



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 2/3Page: 11/11/2019 09:09 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 10/01/2019 - 10/31/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

181.00 NYE UNIFORM40707GEN10/17/2019
388.93 THE SBAM PLAN40708GEN10/17/2019

5.69 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER40709GEN10/17/2019
67.41 WOW!  BUSINESS40710GEN10/17/2019

389.50 WOODMAN PLUMBING CO., INC.40711GEN10/17/2019
10.89 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40712GEN10/21/2019
22.83 BRYAN RADER40713GEN10/21/2019

508.44 CONSUMERS ENERGY40714GEN10/21/2019
74.96 NAPA OF IONIA40715GEN10/21/2019
82.75 PRINTING ESSENTIALS40716GEN10/21/2019

271.58 VERIZON WIRELESS40717GEN10/21/2019
91.25 WOW!  BUSINESS40718GEN10/21/2019

125.24 WOW!  BUSINESS40719GEN10/21/2019
450.00 ADVANCE TRAINING CONCEPTS LLC40720GEN10/23/2019

1,477.00 DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC40721GEN10/23/2019
75.20 LAKEWOOD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY40722GEN10/23/2019

621.37 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40723GEN10/23/2019
144.67 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40724GEN10/28/2019
654.69 JIM'S SERVICE40725GEN10/28/2019
250.00 TERESA SWIFT-ECKERT40726GEN10/28/2019
240.00 KATHY'S CLEANING40727GEN10/28/2019

0.00 NAPA OF IONIA21(S)GEN10/29/2019
13.97 BRYAN RADER40728GEN10/29/2019

627.60 CARDMEMBER SERVICE40729GEN10/29/2019
87.50 WEST MICHIGAN CRIMINAL JUSTICE 40730GEN10/29/2019

GEN TOTALS:

28,925.42 Total of 52 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
28,925.42 Total of 52 Checks:

Bank HBOND 8181 GEN HIGHWAY BOND REDEMPTION

4,689.00 MERCANTILE BANK1019HBOND10/29/2019

HBOND TOTALS:

4,689.00 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
4,689.00 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank HWY 6659 GENERAL HWY

825.50 HSV REDI-MIX1946HWY10/10/2019
87.55 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN1947HWY10/17/2019
68.79 THE SBAM PLAN1948HWY10/17/2019

HWY TOTALS:

981.84 Total of 3 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
981.84 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank LOC 6646 LOCAL STREETS

26.51 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2207LOC10/17/2019
10.05 THE SBAM PLAN2208LOC10/17/2019

LOC TOTALS:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
36.56 Total of 2 Checks:



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 3/3Page: 11/11/2019 09:09 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 10/01/2019 - 10/31/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

36.56 Total of 2 Disbursements:

Bank MAJ 6633 MAJOR STREETS

45.11 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2273MAJ10/17/2019
136,045.18 PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE SYSTEMS, LLC2274MAJ10/17/2019

10.20 THE SBAM PLAN2275MAJ10/17/2019

MAJ TOTALS:

136,100.49 Total of 3 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
136,100.49 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank WATER 6620 WATER

768.07 BADGER METER 4728WATER10/01/2019
297.24 ETNA SUPPLY - GRAND RAPIDS4729WATER10/01/2019
150.00 H2O COMPLIANCE SERVICES INC.4730WATER10/01/2019
750.00 HAVILAND4731WATER10/01/2019
273.15 KCI 4732WATER10/01/2019

5,000.00 WALKER, FLUKE & SHELDON, PLC4733WATER10/01/2019
34.56 VERIZON WIRELESS4734WATER10/07/2019

134.22 WEX BANK4735WATER10/07/2019
2,600.00 WSOS CAC INC4736WATER10/07/2019
1,086.21 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL4737WATER10/10/2019

75.02 AT&T4738WATER10/17/2019
3,391.99 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN4739WATER10/17/2019

337.96 CONSUMERS ENERGY4740WATER10/17/2019
292.37 THE SBAM PLAN4741WATER10/17/2019
249.17 CONSUMERS ENERGY4742WATER10/21/2019

1,400.00 MODERN DESIGN ELECTRICAL, LLC4743WATER10/21/2019
149.67 VERIZON WIRELESS4744WATER10/21/2019

V62.58 WOW!  BUSINESS4745WATER10/21/2019
62.61 WOW!  BUSINESS4746WATER10/21/2019

744.55 LITES PLUS, INC.4747WATER10/23/2019
6.69 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER4748WATER10/23/2019

44.00 CITY OF IONIA4749WATER10/28/2019
4,429.92 HOMEWORKS4750WATER10/28/2019

WATER TOTALS:

22,277.40 Total of 22 Disbursements:

62.58 Less 1 Void Checks:
22,339.98 Total of 23 Checks:

Bank WBOND 8194 WATER BOND REDEMPTION

1,881.00 MERCANTILE BANK1020WBOND10/29/2019

WBOND TOTALS:

1,881.00 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
1,881.00 Total of 1 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

196,474.93 Total of 89 Disbursements:

112.47 Less 2 Void Checks:
196,587.40 Total of 91 Checks:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/9Page:11/11/2019 09:08 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GEN FUND INCOME101-000-401.101
107.30 (28,898.61)396,000.00 396,000.00 424,898.61 423,030.71 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES101-000-402.000
54.46 26,415.74 58,000.00 58,000.00 31,584.26 56,074.03 CURRENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX101-000-410.000
47.14 26,431.38 50,000.00 50,000.00 23,568.62 0.00 DELINQUENT REAL PROPERTY TAX101-000-412.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES101-000-420.000

57.00 258.00 600.00 600.00 342.00 598.00 MANUFACTURED HOUSING FEES101-000-428.000
671.99 (39,467.44)6,900.00 6,900.00 46,367.44 6,944.36 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE TAX101-000-441.000
10.45 134.32 150.00 150.00 15.68 964.89 PENALTIES & INTEREST ON TAXES101-000-445.000
95.48 329.15 7,290.00 7,290.00 6,960.85 7,099.39 PROPERTY TAX ADMINISTRATION FEE101-000-447.000
82.32 371.35 2,100.00 2,100.00 1,728.65 2,037.75 LIQUOR LICENSE FEES101-000-452.000
48.01 2,599.37 5,000.00 5,000.00 2,400.63 5,092.92 CABLE TV FRANCHISE101-000-454.000
0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 SPECIAL USE/ZBA PERMIT101-000-476.000

525.00 (850.00)200.00 200.00 1,050.00 925.00 ZONING PERMIT FEES101-000-477.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FEDERAL GRANTS101-000-501.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GRANT MONIES-USDA101-000-501.001
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GRANT MONIES-ADMINISTRATION101-000-501.003
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STATE GRANTS101-000-539.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GRANT MONIES-DNR101-000-539.001

98.98 81.91 8,000.00 8,000.00 7,918.09 7,900.58 METRO ACT101-000-543.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DDA INCOME101-000-545.000

50.26 88,546.00 178,000.00 178,000.00 89,454.00 173,538.00 STATE REVENUE SHARING101-000-574.000
51.02 21,585.00 44,070.00 44,070.00 22,485.00 44,073.00 EVIP PMTS101-000-576.000
0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 TREE GRANT101-000-579.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM LOCAL UNITS101-000-580.000
0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 27,175.37 VEHICLE RENTAL INCOME101-000-600.000

100.00 (5.75)0.00 0.00 5.75 0.00 PHOTO COPIES101-000-631.000
0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 0.00 150.00 MOWING 101-000-632.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SWIMMING REGISTRATION FEES101-000-633.000

137.09 (185.43)500.00 500.00 685.43 589.14 MAY CLEAN UP (NON-RESIDENTS)101-000-635.000
3.00 485.00 500.00 500.00 15.00 175.00 PARKING TICKET FEES101-000-657.000

53.73 1,388.22 3,000.00 3,000.00 1,611.78 1,291.25 ORDINANCE FINES101-000-660.000
128.83 (288.27)1,000.00 1,000.00 1,288.27 2,639.80 INTEREST101-000-665.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL REVENUE101-000-669.000
95.83 125.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,875.00 3,751.00 RENTS-BUILDINGS-LAND101-000-670.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,205.00 SALE OF FIXED ASSET101-000-673.000

687.60 (2,938.00)500.00 500.00 3,438.00 900.00 DONATIONS-PRIVATE SOURCES101-000-675.000
100.00 (1,590.22)0.00 0.00 1,590.22 1,300.80 REIMBURSMENTS101-000-676.000
100.00 (11.16)0.00 0.00 11.16 1,883.88 MISC REVENUE101-000-695.000
47.20 7,920.38 15,000.00 15,000.00 7,079.62 19,982.43 MISC REVENUE-MISC REVENUE GENERAL101-000-695.001
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC REVENUE-BEACH CONCESSION101-000-695.002

60.33 793.50 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,206.50 917.85 MISC REVENUE-POLICE101-000-695.010
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NOTE PROCEED101-000-697.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS IN101-000-699.000

84.85 121,129.44 799,710.00 799,710.00 678,580.56 812,740.15 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
67.51 22,434.13 69,050.00 69,050.00 46,615.87 64,917.62 GOVERNING BODY101
46.47 26,894.54 50,240.00 50,240.00 23,345.46 17,838.84 MANAGERS172
28.56 20,759.97 29,060.00 29,060.00 8,300.03 23,347.99 PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING265
40.49 211,646.48 355,640.00 355,640.00 143,993.52 207,291.62 POLICE301
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FIRE336

42.85 121,649.64 212,844.45 203,360.00 91,194.81 220,171.67 PUBLIC WORKS441
47.86 19,676.91 37,740.00 37,740.00 18,063.09 32,475.89 PUBLIC UTILITIES-STREET LIGHTING448
95.53 151.82 3,400.00 3,400.00 3,248.18 4,133.78 WATER/SEWER536



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 2/9Page:11/11/2019 09:08 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

58.22 3,204.67 7,670.00 7,670.00 4,465.33 7,010.46 ZONING722
31.80 3,751.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 1,749.00 4,612.31 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT728
38.39 23,442.78 38,050.00 38,050.00 14,607.22 27,956.06 PARKS AND RECREATION751
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LIBRARY790
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 999

43.94 453,611.94 809,194.45 799,710.00 355,582.51 609,756.24 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

3,405.55 (332,482.50)(9,484.45)0.00 322,998.05 202,983.91 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

43.94 453,611.94 809,194.45 799,710.00 355,582.51 609,756.24 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
84.85 121,129.44 799,710.00 799,710.00 678,580.56 812,740.15 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 3/9Page:11/11/2019 09:08 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND
Revenues

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MAJOR STREET INCOME202-000-401.202
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER STATE GRANTS202-000-556.000

52.45 85,953.68 180,760.00 180,760.00 94,806.32 172,195.91 ACT 51 / STREETS202-000-575.000
121.23 (276.05)1,300.00 1,300.00 1,576.05 1,709.04 INTEREST202-000-665.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMBURSMENTS202-000-676.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMBURSEMENTS-EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS202-000-676.001

698.84 (30,720.63)5,130.00 0.00 35,850.63 0.00 MISC REVENUE202-000-695.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS IN202-000-699.000

70.64 54,957.00 187,190.00 182,060.00 132,233.00 173,904.95 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
81.87 34,315.69 189,230.00 184,100.00 154,914.31 137,977.73 STREET DEPT (ACT 51)449
62.05 1,613.01 4,250.00 4,250.00 2,636.99 3,893.87 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450
10.89 3,306.08 3,710.00 3,710.00 403.92 7,584.94 SNOW REMOVAL869

80.10 39,234.78 197,190.00 192,060.00 157,955.22 149,456.54 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

257.22 15,722.22 (10,000.00)(10,000.00)(25,722.22)24,448.41 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

80.10 39,234.78 197,190.00 192,060.00 157,955.22 149,456.54 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
70.64 54,957.00 187,190.00 182,060.00 132,233.00 173,904.95 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 4/9Page:11/11/2019 09:08 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND
Revenues

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LOCAL STREET INCOME203-000-401.203
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27,814.80 OTHER STATE GRANTS203-000-556.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,225.73 STATE REVENUE OTHER203-000-574.001

52.36 29,061.66 61,000.00 61,000.00 31,938.34 58,049.00 ACT 51 / STREETS203-000-575.000
131.69 (253.55)800.00 800.00 1,053.55 1,064.88 INTEREST203-000-665.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMBURSMENTS203-000-676.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMBURSEMENTS-EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS203-000-676.001

100.00 (199.75)0.00 0.00 199.75 0.00 MISC REVENUE203-000-695.000
0.00 3,200.00 3,200.00 3,200.00 0.00 57,067.56 TRANSFERS IN203-000-699.000

51.06 31,808.36 65,000.00 65,000.00 33,191.64 160,221.97 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
11.68 27,601.51 31,250.00 31,250.00 3,648.49 25,063.18 STREET DEPT (ACT 51)449
64.41 2,331.13 6,550.00 6,550.00 4,218.87 6,229.80 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450
3.91 3,565.01 3,710.00 3,710.00 144.99 3,068.89 SNOW REMOVAL869

19.30 33,497.65 41,510.00 41,510.00 8,012.35 34,361.87 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

107.19 (1,689.29)23,490.00 23,490.00 25,179.29 125,860.10 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

19.30 33,497.65 41,510.00 41,510.00 8,012.35 34,361.87 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
51.06 31,808.36 65,000.00 65,000.00 33,191.64 160,221.97 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 5/9Page:11/11/2019 09:08 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY
Revenues

107.58 (13,421.07)177,000.00 177,000.00 190,421.07 189,104.20 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES204-000-402.000
54.44 11,845.22 26,000.00 26,000.00 14,154.78 25,130.32 CURRENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX204-000-410.000
48.01 11,437.61 22,000.00 22,000.00 10,562.39 0.00 DELINQUENT REAL PROPERTY TAX204-000-412.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES204-000-420.000
2.16 97.84 100.00 100.00 2.16 11.02 PENALTIES & INTEREST ON TAXES204-000-445.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PROPERTY TAX ADMINISTRATION FEE204-000-447.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FUND BALANCE REVENUE204-000-450.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FEDERAL GRANTS204-000-501.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ADMINISTRATION FEES204-000-626.000

92.37 137.43 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,662.57 1,845.20 INTEREST204-000-665.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMBURSMENTS204-000-676.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMBURSEMENTS-EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS204-000-676.001
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMB-PROPERTY OWNER-SIDEWALKS204-000-676.003
0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 MDOT REIMBURSEMENT204-000-676.004
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (CIP)204-000-679.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC REVENUE204-000-695.000

94.72 12,097.03 228,900.00 228,900.00 216,802.97 216,090.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL000

81.59 28,006.91 152,100.00 152,100.00 124,093.09 128,589.73 HIGHWAYS, STREETS (NOT ACT 51)446
64.00 8,820.37 24,500.00 24,500.00 15,679.63 23,082.84 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450

79.15 36,827.28 176,600.00 176,600.00 139,772.72 151,672.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

147.29 (24,730.25)52,300.00 52,300.00 77,030.25 64,418.17 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

79.15 36,827.28 176,600.00 176,600.00 139,772.72 151,672.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
94.72 12,097.03 228,900.00 228,900.00 216,802.97 216,090.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 6/9Page:11/11/2019 09:08 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues

0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 28,902.36 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES248-000-402.000
156.64 (14.16)25.00 25.00 39.16 30.86 INTEREST248-000-665.000

0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,890.00 DONATIONS-PRIVATE SOURCES248-000-675.000

0.12 31,485.84 31,525.00 31,525.00 39.16 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 DDA275

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

322.13 11,397.38 2,700.00 2,700.00 (8,697.38)22,009.43 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.12 31,485.84 31,525.00 31,525.00 39.16 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 7/9Page:11/11/2019 09:08 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 290 - ARTS
Revenues

145.67 (685.00)1,500.00 1,500.00 2,185.00 1,685.00 ART IN THE PARK REVENUE-NEXT FY290-000-401.001
128.44 (640.00)2,250.00 2,250.00 2,890.00 4,090.00 ART IN THE PARK REVENUE290-000-401.290

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FEDERAL GRANTS290-000-501.000
63.01 822.00 2,222.00 2,222.00 1,400.00 14,914.00 STATE GRANTS290-000-539.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL INCOME290-000-601.000

157.14 (200.00)350.00 350.00 550.00 350.00 FOOD BOOTH FEES290-000-610.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CONCESSIONS290-000-611.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST290-000-665.000

101.03 (31.00)3,000.00 3,000.00 3,031.00 3,000.00 DONATIONS-PRIVATE SOURCES290-000-675.000
0.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 0.00 30.00 MISC REVENUE290-000-695.000

106.17 (584.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,056.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
110.52 (996.41)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,468.41 15,991.60 ARTS752

110.52 (996.41)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,468.41 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 412.41 0.00 0.00 (412.41)8,077.40 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

110.52 (996.41)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,468.41 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
106.17 (584.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,056.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 290 - ARTS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 8/9Page:11/11/2019 09:08 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW
Revenues

100.00 (25.00)0.00 0.00 25.00 0.00 FOOD BOOTH FEES291-000-610.000
100.00 0.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 910.00 REGISTRATIONS291-000-625.000
100.00 (15.00)0.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 VENDORS291-000-626.000
143.40 (2.17)5.00 5.00 7.17 8.50 INTEREST291-000-665.000
116.50 (330.00)2,000.00 2,000.00 2,330.00 2,195.00 DONATIONS-PRIVATE SOURCES291-000-675.000
140.00 (40.00)100.00 100.00 140.00 110.00 T-SHIRT REVENUE 291-000-678.000

113.72 (412.17)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,417.17 3,223.50 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
134.36 (1,032.40)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,037.40 3,384.82 CAR SHOW753

134.36 (1,032.40)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,037.40 3,384.82 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 620.23 0.00 0.00 (620.23)(161.32)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

134.36 (1,032.40)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,037.40 3,384.82 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
113.72 (412.17)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,417.17 3,223.50 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 9/9Page:11/11/2019 09:08 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 10/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
10/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues

71.52 263,972.13 927,000.00 927,000.00 663,027.87 914,756.34 WATER REVENUE591-000-402.591
45.37 3,004.80 5,500.00 5,500.00 2,495.20 6,539.82 PENALTIES & INTEREST591-000-445.000
100.00 (19,110.96)0.00 0.00 19,110.96 1,906,073.00 FEDERAL GRANTS591-000-501.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STATE GRANTS591-000-539.000
0.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 0.00 7,970.30 WELLHEAD PROTECTION591-000-539.002

109.58 (210.66)2,200.00 2,200.00 2,410.66 2,060.60 WATER HOOK UP FEES591-000-607.000
124.68 (160.39)650.00 650.00 810.39 824.80 WATER TURN ON/OFF FEES591-000-608.000
65.71 120.00 350.00 350.00 230.00 330.00 FINAL READ INCOME591-000-609.000
104.18 (217.32)5,200.00 5,200.00 5,417.32 6,763.97 INTEREST591-000-665.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 RECONCILIATION DISCREPANCIES591-000-669.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALE OF FIXED ASSET591-000-673.000

60.27 1,191.87 3,000.00 3,000.00 1,808.13 2,969.64 INCENTIVE PROGRAM591-000-674.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMBURSEMENTS-EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS591-000-676.001
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMB FROM WASTEWATER591-000-677.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMB FROM WASTEWATER-POSTAGE591-000-677.001
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMB FROM WASTEWATER-WAGES591-000-677.003

106.90 (801.95)11,616.45 1,000.00 12,418.40 754.60 MISC REVENUE591-000-695.000
100.00 (1,300.00)0.00 0.00 1,300.00 0.00 MISC REVENUE-OTHER591-000-695.002

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC REVENUE-LAKEWOOD WASTEWATER591-000-695.100
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REIMBURSMENTS591-536-676.000

73.99 249,262.52 958,291.45 947,675.00 709,028.93 2,849,043.07 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
69.01 272,376.90 878,941.89 822,105.00 606,564.99 825,888.02 WATER/SEWER536

69.01 272,376.90 878,941.89 822,105.00 606,564.99 825,888.02 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

129.13 (23,114.38)79,349.56 125,570.00 102,463.94 2,023,155.05 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

69.01 272,376.90 878,941.89 822,105.00 606,564.99 825,888.02 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
73.99 249,262.52 958,291.45 947,675.00 709,028.93 2,849,043.07 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:

355.77 (353,864.18)138,355.11 194,060.00 492,219.29 2,470,791.15 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

60.20 853,608.20 2,144,738.34 2,073,287.00 1,291,130.14 1,799,325.45 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
78.11 499,744.02 2,283,093.45 2,267,347.00 1,783,349.43 4,270,116.60 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



1 
 

 
 

Lake Odessa Village  
 

Zoning Administrator Report  
 

October 2019 
 

Permits: 
 
On October 1, 2019, I approved a zoning permit to Jane Aldrich for a storage building of 8’ by 20’ 
to be located at 720 Sixth Ave. 
 
On October 1, 2019, I approved a zoning permit to Clare Sutliff for a storage building of 8’ by 20’ 
to be located at 619 Fourth Ave. 
 
On October 8, 2019 I approved a zoning permit to Walkers Pharmacy at 838 Fourth Ave for a 
replacement wall sign to be a projecting sign of 3’ by 4’ to be located at 838 Fourth Ave. 
 
I received an Application for a garage addition in September at 1125 Tupper Lake but I have not 
received a site plan.  I spoke with the owner twice and gave him setback information.  
 
Supplemental: 
 
 
Miscellaneous 
Phone calls involved various appraisers checking on the zoning classification of assorted parcels.  
Other questions involved various questions regarding setbacks, fences, pools and permits. 
 
 
I attended the Planning Commission meeting on October 28. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

To comply with the Michigan Open Meetings Act (MCL 15.265): 
 

Lake Odessa Village Council 
Page Memorial Building 

839 Fourth Avenue 
Lake Odessa, Michigan 48849 

Phone: 616-374-7110;  Fax: 616-374-0040 
 

Website where meeting notices are posted: 
www.lakeodessa.org/publicnotices.html 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The Lake Odessa Village Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, November 18, 2019, at 
7:00 p.m. at the Page Memorial Building to accept comments for the vacation of a portion of a 
Village-owned right-of-way, located between the properties of 1738 and 1744 Jordan Lake 
Avenue: 
 
A map of the proposed vacation of property may be viewed at www.lakeodessa.org or may be 
viewed in person at the Page Memorial Building located at 839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa 
during normal business hours.  All interested persons may attend the public hearing and comment 
on the special use permit.  Written comments will be considered if mailed to “Village Council – 
Right-of-Way Vacation,” 839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, MI  48849 and received by Friday, 
November 15, 2019.  Comments may also be emailed to:  treasurer@lakeodessa.org.  
 
The hearing will be held at the Village of Lake Odessa, Page Memorial Building, 839 Fourth 
Ave., Lake Odessa, MI 48849.   
 
It is the policy of the Village of Lake Odessa that all sponsored public meetings and events are accessible to people 

with disabilities. If you need assistance in participating in this meeting or event due to a disability as defined under 

the ADA, please call the village office at (616) 374-7110 or e-mail: treasurer@lakeodessa.org at least 24 hours prior 

to the scheduled meeting or event to request an accommodation.      
 
 
 

http://www.lakeodessa.org/publicnotices.html
http://www.lakeodessa.org/
mailto:treasurer@lakeodessa.org
mailto:treasurer@lakeodessa.org
mailto:treasurer@lakeodessa.org


Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-37 
 

APPROVING THE VACATION OF A PORTION OF UNDEVELOPED VILLAGE-
OWNED RIGHT-OF-WAY BETWEEN LOTS 35 AND 36 ON JORDAN LAKE 

AVENUE, BETWEEN CLARK STREET AND BONANZA ROAD IN THE VILLAGE OF 
 LAKE ODESSA 

 
WHEREAS, the Village Council, pursuant to Section 13 and Section 14 of the General Law 
Village Act,1895 PA 3, desires to vacate, abandon, discontinue, and/or abolish the following land 
in the Village of Lake Odessa, County of Ionia, State of Michigan: 
 

A portion of the undeveloped right-of-way running East and West between lots 35 
and 36, beginning at Jordan Lake Avenue and ending at a point equal to the 
northeastern corner boundary of lot 36, as shown on the Plat of the Village of 
Bonanza, dated August 8, 1887; and 

 

WHEREAS, the portion of Village-owned right-of-way proposed for vacation is shown on a map 
attached as “Exhibit A;” and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the Village Council conducted a public hearing to hear 
objections to the proposal to vacate, abandon, discontinue, and/or abolish the aforementioned 
property, and has determined that vacating the aforementioned property is in the best interest of 
the Village.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council hereby vacates, abandons, discontinues, and/or abolishes this portion 
of Village-owned right-of-way. 
2. The Village Council reserves, for itself and for its successors and assigns, a permanent utility 
easement on, over, across, and under the aforementioned property, for the purpose of 
constructing, installing, replacing, repairing, maintaining, and improving utilities, including, 
without limitation, communication lines, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, and watermains, along 
with related appurtenances, together with the right of ingress and egress for the purposes above 
described. 
3. The Village Clerk is authorized and directed to record this resolution with the Ionia County 
Register of Deeds and to file a certified copy with the department of licensing and regulatory 
affairs. 



4.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: November 18, 2019    __________________________________ 
        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 





Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-38 
 
APPROVING, AUTHORIZING, AND DIRECTING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO 
SIGN A GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA AND 
THE MICHIGAN COUNCIL FOR ARTS AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa, on behalf of the Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission, 
has submitted an application for a grant to support the annual “Art in the Park” event; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa was notified that on October 23, 2019, this grant 
application was approved for funding, with a grant amount of $6,858.00 in total; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs has provided the Village with a 
grant agreement, to be signed by the Village Manager upon Village Council approval. A copy of 
this grant agreement is attached as “Exhibit A 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council approves, authorizes, and directs the Village Manager to sign the 
attached grant agreement and to remit back to the Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural 
Affairs. 
2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: November 18, 2019    __________________________________ 
        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 











Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-39 
 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF CENTRAL SQUARE PUBLIC SAFETY 
SOFTWARE FOR THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA’S POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa’s police department currently utilizes New World 
Systems “Aegis Software” for police reporting, in concert with the Ionia County Sheriff’s 
Department and Ionia County Central Dispatch; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ionia County Sheriff’s Department and Ionia County Central Dispatch has 
informed the Lake Odessa Police Department that they will be upgrading to Central Square Public 
Safety Software in the near future; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ionia County Sheriff’s Department and Ionia County Central Dispatch’s planned 
software upgrade will allow the Lake Odessa Police Department to receive a substantial price 
break for the upgrading of our software, should we opt to continue utilizing this same software 
system; and 
 
WHEREAS, upgrading our software will allow for us to continue to be closely aligned with both 
the Sheriff’s Department and Ionia County Central Dispatch, which will allow for a continuance 
of excellent communication between our departments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the initial cost for this upgrade will be $5,664.00, and will be a cost of approximately 
$525.00 per year thereafter for annual maintenance. A copy of this proposal is attached as “Exhibit 
A;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa included this upgrade in its FY 2019-2020 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council approves the purchase of Central Square Public Safety Software for 
use by the Lake Odessa Police Department. 
2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   



 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: November 18, 2019    __________________________________ 
        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 



































Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-40 
 

APPROVING THE AUCTIONING OF VILLAGE-OWNED EQUIPMENT 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa owns and maintains a fleet of vehicles and equipment 
used in the provision of Village services; and 
 
WHEREAS, when these vehicles and equipment have either been replaced or are no longer 
necessary to provide Village services, it can become prudent and necessary to dispose of surplus 
equipment in a fair and equitable manner; and 
 
WHEREAS, Village staff has identified one piece of equipment – a 2010 Chevrolet Impala -- that 
can be disposed of through sale to the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa has previously utilized the services of M&W Inc., to 
dispose of excess vehicles and equipment, through their auctioning services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Village staff believes that the aforementioned piece of equipment is past its useful 
life expectancy and is no longer integral to the daily provision of Village services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Village staff believes that this vehicle should be sent to auction, with a stated 
minimum bid price of $2,500.00. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council approves the auctioning of a Village-owned 2006 Chevrolet Impala, 
utilizing the services of M&W Inc., with a stated minimum bid price of $2,500.00. 
2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 



RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: November 18, 2019    __________________________________ 
        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 



Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-41 
 
APPROVING THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S APPOINTMENT LIST AS PRESENTED 

FOR VARIOUS VILLAGE POSTS, BOARDS, AND COMMISSIONS 
 
WHEREAS, per Michigan PA 3 of 1895 (“General Law Village Act”) (62.2)(Sec.2)(1): 

 
“The president may nominate and the council appoint such officers as shall be 
provided for by resolution or ordinance of the council. The council may provide 
by ordinance or resolution for the appointment of other officers whose election or 
appointment is not specifically provided for in this act, as the council considers 
necessary for the execution of the powers granted by this act. The powers and 
duties of such officers shall be prescribed by the council. The council may require 
that the officers perform their duties faithfully and that proper measures be taken 
to punish neglect of duty by an officer,” and; 
 

WHEREAS, historically, these appointments have been made at the November regular Village 
Council meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lake Odessa Village President, the Honorable Karen L. Banks, has presented a 
list of appointments for various posts, boards, and commissions for the Village of Lake Odessa. 
A copy of this appointment list is attached as “Exhibit A.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council approves the appointment list presented by the Village President as 
presented in “Exhibit A.” 
2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 



RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: November 18, 2019    __________________________________ 
        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 










